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           1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

           2             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  We are back on the record.

           3        And before we proceed further, a preliminary

           4        matter.  Mr. --

           5             MR. BUTLER:  Butler.

           6             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler.

           7             MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

           8             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  I'd like to say Bocephus

           9        but, you know, you don't have the hat and you don't

          10        have the glasses and you don't do country music, so

          11        what can I say.

          12             MR. BUTLER:  I tried.  Chairman Carter, two

          13        things I wanted to bring up quickly.  First of all,

          14        I have provided to each of the Commissioners, to

          15        staff and to FGT's counsel a copy of Late-Filed

          16        Exhibit 96.  This was the request for a description

          17        of the rate treatment, the current rate treatment

          18        for the 18-inch pipeline that would be used to

          19        transfer gas from the Martin plant to the Riviera

          20        plant.  And I've laid that before you.  It's just a

          21        single page that describes the current treatment.

          22        And I guess if there's no objection, I would move

          23        its entry into the record at this point.

          24             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?

          25             MR. SELF:  We have no objection to Exhibit 96.
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           1             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  And, staff, this was your

           2        request anyway, wasn't it?

           3             MS. HELTON:  Actually I think it was our

           4        request per Skop's -- Commissioner Skop's request.

           5             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Show it done without

           6        objection.

           7             MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

           8             (Exhibit No. 96 marked for identification.)

           9             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler.

          10             MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.  The second matter,

          11        the considerably thicker package I had laid before

          12        you is a series of responses to data requests by

          13        FGT to the FERC staff in the FERC Phase VIII

          14        expansion proceeding.

          15             And the significance of it, there should be on

          16        each copy a single tab, which, if you go to it, and

          17        it's page 38 of 53, you'll see that it sets forth

          18        on FGT's response to a question about the capital

          19        structure and financial -- financing costs for the

          20        FGT Phase VIII expansion.

          21             There is an exhibit that has been requested,

          22        Late-Filed Exhibit 98, I believe, that has to do

          23        with the construction costs for Phase VIII.  And we

          24        would ask you to either identify and accept this as

          25        a late-filed exhibit or simply take official
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           1        recognition of it as a public FERC document that

           2        has been filed by FGT in its rate proceeding that

           3        kind of completes the picture.

           4             We've got an exhibit that we'll be providing

           5        that will state what the construction costs are,

           6        what the investment is in the Phase VIII expansion,

           7        and this will describe what the cost of financing

           8        that investment would be.

           9             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  So this is in lieu of 98,

          10        you said?

          11             MR. BUTLER:  It's not in lieu of it, no, sir.

          12        It is a -- we're asking you to take recognition of

          13        it as a filed -- filed document with FERC from the

          14        intervenor from FGT in this proceeding that

          15        provides additional information that we feel is

          16        relevant to and complements the exhibit, the

          17        late-filed exhibit concerning the construction

          18        costs.

          19             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?

          20             MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We would

          21        object to this for a couple of reasons.  First,

          22        this is not the kind of document that it's

          23        appropriate for official recognition of.

          24             Second, the chance to cross-examine FGT's

          25        witnesses regarding this has come and gone.  They
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           1        did, in fact, in depositions, which are part of the

           2        record, as well as during the cross earlier today

           3        ask some questions regarding the subject matter,

           4        and I believe Mr. Langston testified to those

           5        questions based upon what they were.

           6             And as part of that, this is irrelevant,

           7        because in the testimony that Mr. Langston's

           8        provided, he's already said that the rates in Phase

           9        VIII were negotiated rates and so -- and he also

          10        testified, I believe, that the negotiated rates

          11        were less than those that were filed.  So this is

          12        really pretty irrelevant information at this point.

          13             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Ms. Helton?

          14             MS. HELTON:  Mr. Chairman, I apologize.  Time

          15        got away from me at lunch and I only heard the tail

          16        end of this conversation.  If I could defer to Ms.

          17        Brown, who was here for the entire discussion on

          18        this particular document.

          19             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Ms. Brown?

          20             MS. BROWN:  Mr. Chairman, I agree with FGT

          21        that this is probably not the appropriate document

          22        to take official recollection of.  I also think it

          23        is hearsay, though perhaps it could be considered a

          24        business record.

          25             I would point out that we are going to ask you
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           1        all to take official recognition of the FERC's

           2        final order approving the rate settlement at the

           3        end of the proceeding.  The parties have stipulated

           4        that you all can take official recognition of it.

           5             And I guess what I'm trying to say is this is

           6        the final document.  This document that FPL has

           7        presented is sort of a preliminary, nonfinal set of

           8        information that really is -- is -- this is the

           9        final best evidence of what the rate settlement

          10        was.

          11             MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry, Mr. --

          12             MS. BROWN:  Some -- some responses to data

          13        requests.

          14             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler?

          15             MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, I

          16        just -- I need to correct the understanding of what

          17        this represents.  The order that we have discussed,

          18        the FERC order that I think will be offered for

          19        official recognition later is a 2004 order settling

          20        a rate proceeding at that point.

          21             This is a 2009 filing.  It's in connection

          22        with the expansion of Phase VIII.  It's different

          23        information that coincides more directly to what

          24        FGT has been asked to provide as Late-Filed Exhibit

          25        98, which are the construction costs for that
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           1        expansion.

           2             I also would observe that I think clearly

           3        under both the business records and if Mr. Self is

           4        saying that it's not information they care to have

           5        in the record, I suppose they consider it against

           6        their interest.  It is an admission of a party in

           7        the proceedings and I think it clearly meets at

           8        least two recognized hearsay exceptions.

           9             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Let me do this.  Let me just

          10        kind of table this objection and I'll just -- to a

          11        later time.  Staff, just get -- before we conclude

          12        today, I'll get back with you and we'll deal with

          13        that.  But right now I'm inclined just to -- I'll

          14        let you know in a minute.  Let's -- let's move on.

          15             MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

          16             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Next preliminary matter.

          17             MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman, if I can just --

          18             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self, you're recognized.

          19             MR. SELF:  Thank you.  One brief response.  I

          20        would say that to the extent that you are going to

          21        admit this, if he had been using this during

          22        cross-examination, I would have had the opportunity

          23        to ask some redirect about it.  And so I would say

          24        that if your inclination ultimately is to admit it,

          25        that Mr. Langston be recalled so I can do the --
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           1        ask him some redirect regarding this document.

           2             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.

           3             MR. SELF:  Thank you.

           4             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  My inclination right now is

           5        not to do anything.  I mean, to defer it until

           6        Ms. Helton has had an opportunity to look it over.

           7             MR. SELF:  It's good to be the Chairman, sir.

           8             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Sometimes.

           9             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Mr. Butler, you're

          10        recognized.

          11             MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.  We would call our

          12        next witness, Dr. Morley.

          13             MR. GOORLAND:  And Dr. Morley has been sworn.

          14                       ROSEMARY MORLEY

          15   was called as a witness on behalf of FPL, and having

          16   been duly sworn, testifies as follows:

          17                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

          18   BY MR. GOORLAND:

          19        Q    Dr. Morley, have you prepared and caused to be

          20   filed eight pages of prefiled rebuttal testimony in this

          21   proceeding?

          22        A    Yes, I have.

          23        Q    And are you also sponsoring any exhibits to

          24   your rebuttal testimony?

          25        A    Yes, I am.
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           1        Q    And do those exhibits shown as RM-22 and

           2   RM-23, are they attached to your testimony?

           3        A    Yes, they are.

           4             MR. GOORLAND:  And I'll note, Mr. Chairman,

           5        for the record that those are shown on staff's list

           6        as Exhibits 83 and 84.

           7             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  For identification,

           8        83 and 84.

           9             (Exhibits 83 and 84 were identified.)

          10   BY MR. GOORLAND:

          11        Q    Do you have any changes or revisions to your

          12   rebuttal testimony?

          13        A    No, I do not.

          14        Q    And if I asked you the same questions

          15   contained in your rebuttal testimony, would your answers

          16   be the same today?

          17        A    Yes, they would.

          18             MR. GOORLAND:  Mr. Chairman, I ask that

          19        Dr. Morley's prefiled rebuttal testimony be

          20        inserted into the record as though read.

          21             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

          22        the witness will be inserted into the record as

          23        though read.

          24

          25
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           1   BY MR. GOORLAND:

           2        Q    And, Dr. Morley, have you prepared a summary

           3   of your rebuttal testimony?

           4        A    Yes, I have.

           5        Q    Would you please provide your summary to the

           6   Commission?

           7        A    Yes.  Good afternoon, Commissioners.

           8             The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to

           9   address FGT witness Langston's contention that FPL's

          10   forecast of long-term population growth is overstated in

          11   light of recent population projections from the

          12   University of Florida.

          13             The current recession has substantially

          14   reduced the level of population growth in Florida we are

          15   experiencing today and can expect to experience for the

          16   next few years.  And our forecast acknowledges that.

          17             The October 2008 population projections from

          18   the University of Florida, which we relied on in

          19   developing our forecast, indicate a minimal level of

          20   population growth this year, followed by only modestly

          21   higher levels in 2010 and 2011.

          22             As such, we have no issue with the University

          23   of Florida's conclusion that we will experience a lower

          24   level of population growth over the next few years.  The

          25   issue we have with the University of Florida's
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           1   October 2008 projections and with their more recent

           2   March 2009 projections is that both sets of projections

           3   assume a permanently lower population growth in Florida

           4   in the long-term.  So it would not just lower population

           5   growth today, but lower population growth ten years from

           6   now and beyond.

           7             Contrary to this assumption of permanently

           8   lower population growth, history shows that periods of

           9   below average population growth in Florida are followed

          10   by periods of higher than average population growth.

          11   Accordingly, FPL adjusted the University of Florida's

          12   forecast for the rebound in population growth that the

          13   state has consistently experienced in the past.  These

          14   adjustments to the population forecast are appropriate

          15   and should be accepted by this Commission for the

          16   following reasons.

          17             First, the University of Florida has

          18   consistently underestimated the state's long-term

          19   population growth and by a wide margin, on average, by

          20   about 1.3 million residents.  FPL's adjustments to the

          21   University of Florida's population projections are well

          22   within this established tendency to under forecast.

          23             Second, FPL's population forecast results in a

          24   level of long-term population growth which mirrors the

          25   level the state has consistently averaged over the last
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           1   three decades.  Given the fact that the size of the

           2   population today is much larger than it was in past

           3   decades, this is a reasonable assumption.  Accordingly,

           4   FPL's forecast represents an appropriate extension of

           5   long-term population trends.

           6             Third, FPL's forecast falls within the range

           7   of expected population growth indicated by the

           8   University of Florida.  Population projections are

           9   understandably subject to uncertainty.  Recognizing this

          10   fact, the University of Florida issued a banded

          11   projection?

          12             In March 2009.  So in addition to their

          13   mid-band projections that I have been talking about so

          14   far, they also issued a high band and a low band, which

          15   the university calls reasonable alternative scenarios.

          16   FPL's population forecast falls well within these banded

          17   projections.

          18             In summary, FPL's adjustments to the

          19   University of Florida's population projections were

          20   appropriate and should be accepted by this Commission.

          21   This concludes my summary.

          22             MR. GOORLAND:  I tender the witness for

          23        cross-examination.

          24             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?

          25             MR. SELF:  No questions.
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           1             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Staff?

           2             MS. BROWN:  No questions.

           3             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners?  No

           4        questions?  Exhibits?

           5             MR. GOORLAND:  FPL moves Dr. Morley's

           6        exhibits.  I guess they're 83 and 84.

           7             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Are there any objections?

           8             MR. SELF:  No objections.

           9             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection show it

          10        done.  Thank you, Dr. Morley.

          11             Call your next witness.

          12             (Exhibits No. 83 and 84 admitted into the

          13   record.)

          14             MR. PERKO:  FPL calls Juan Enjamio.  I believe

          15        the witness has been sworn.

          16             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  You may proceed.

          17                         JUAN ENJAMIO

          18   was called as a witness on behalf of FPL, and having

          19   been duly sworn, testifies as follows:

          20                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

          21   BY MR. PERKO:

          22        Q    Could you please state your name and full

          23   address for the record.

          24        A    Yes.  My name is one --

          25             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Turn your microphone on.
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           1        A    My name is Juan Enjamio.  My business address

           2   is 9250 West Flagler Street, Miami, Florida, 33174.

           3        Q    And, Mr. Enjamio, did you prepare and have to

           4   be -- cause to be filed in this proceeding 13 pages of

           5   rebuttal testimony?

           6        A    Yes, I have.

           7        Q    And attached to that testimony, are there

           8   exhibits labeled JEA -- JEE-10 through 12?

           9        A    Yes, there are.

          10             MR. PERKO:  And, Mr. Chairman, I'd note for

          11        the record that those have been denominated

          12        Exhibits 85, 86, and 87 on staff's comprehensive

          13        exhibit list.

          14             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  For identification purposes.

          15             (Exhibits 85, 86, and 87 were identified.)

          16   BY MR. PERKO:

          17        Q    Mr. Enjamio, do you have any changes or

          18   additions to your rebuttal testimony?

          19        A    No, I do not.

          20        Q    If I were to ask you the same questions today,

          21   would your responses be the same?

          22        A    Yes.

          23             MR. PERKO:  At this time, Your Honor, we -- or

          24        Mr. Chairman, we'd request that Mr. Enjamio's

          25        rebuttal testimony be entered into the record as
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           1        though read.

           2             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

           3        the witness will be entered into the record as

           4        though read.

           5

           6

           7

           8

           9

          10

          11

          12

          13

          14

          15

          16

          17

          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
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           1   BY MR. PERKO:

           2        Q    At this time, Mr. Enjamio, would you please

           3   provide your summary of your rebuttal testimony?

           4        A    Yes.  Good afternoon, Commissioners.

           5             The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to

           6   comment on the testimony of Florida Gas Transmission

           7   Company witnesses Michael Langston and Benjamin

           8   Schlesinger.  Specifically I would rebut the following

           9   points they raised.

          10             That Florida Power & Light has failed to

          11   demonstrate the need for the Florida EnergySecure

          12   pipeline; that the FPL proposal results in excess cost

          13   to FPL customers, and that FPL's proposed recovery

          14   mechanism for the costs of the Florida EnergySecure line

          15   project affect the economic outcome of the alternative

          16   analysis.

          17             In his testimony, FGT witness Langston stated

          18   that FPL had specifically analyzed FGT's unsolicited

          19   March 18, 2009 proposal, which contained improved cost

          20   information.  However, in response to a staff

          21   interrogatory, FPL did analyze this March 18 propose.

          22   The economic analysis of this proposal resulted in

          23   savings ranging from 22 to 313 million dollars when

          24   compared to FGT's proposal.

          25             In addition, FPL has subsequently conducted an
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           1   updated economic analysis based on current market

           2   conditions and reflecting FPL's return of equity as

           3   requested in the rate case.  The updated economic

           4   analysis showed that the FPL EnergySecure line results

           5   in savings to FPL's customers ranging from $150 million

           6   to $400 million in cumulative present value of revenue

           7   requirements when compared to FGT's proposal.

           8             These savings do not include benefits to FPL

           9   customers of third-party sales, avoided interruptible

          10   gas transportation charges and benefits of competition.

          11   The economic analysis is based on the Commission's

          12   accepted methodology of revenue requirements of the

          13   useful life of the projects and not short-term rate

          14   impacts.  This is the same methodology used by FPL in

          15   all subsequent proceedings in recent memory.

          16             By determining the cost impact over the

          17   longest useful life of the alternatives under

          18   consideration, this approach ensures that all the

          19   benefits to customers of the projects are fully

          20   accounted for.

          21             Mr. Langston also questioned the need for

          22   FPL's EnergySecure line based on his estimates of

          23   inconsistencies he incorrectly claims exist between

          24   FPL's 2009 ten-year site plan and other data provided in

          25   this docket.  I reviewed Mr. Langston's analysis and
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           1   conclude that it is incorrect and there are no

           2   inconsistencies between the data shown in FPL's ten-year

           3   site plan filed on April 1, 2009 and others -- other

           4   sources of information.

           5             Both Mr. Langston and Dr. Schlesinger

           6   incorrectly allege that FPL's use of the declining

           7   revenue requirements for recovering the costs of the

           8   Florida EnergySecure line while using flat

           9   transportation rates for both FGT and Company E create

          10   an inconsistency that they claim somehow favors the FPL

          11   proposal.

          12             They further incorrectly state that FPL's

          13   proposal will result in higher costs to customers.  In

          14   my rebuttal testimony I explain why FPL's approach to

          15   analyzing the comparative economics of both proposals

          16   through application of the cumulative present value

          17   revenue requirements method is appropriate, that the use

          18   of declining revenue requirements in the analysis are

          19   correct, and that FGT has not shown any appropriate

          20   economic analysis that disputes FPL's conclusions that

          21   the Florida EnergySecure line proposal results in lowest

          22   costs to the customers.

          23             That concludes my summary.

          24             MR. PERKO:  We tender the witness for

          25        cross-examination.
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           1             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self.

           2             MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           3                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

           4   BY MR. SELF:

           5        Q    Good afternoon, Mr. Enjamio.  How are you?

           6             I have a couple of questions regarding your

           7   rebuttal testimony.  If you could just turn to page 4,

           8   please.

           9             Now, at the top of page 4 you mention -- you

          10   discuss the response to Staff Interrogatory No. 27,

          11   which I believe you referenced in your summary and I

          12   believe staff may have asked some questions about this

          13   yesterday.  Do you see that?

          14        A    Yes.

          15        Q    I just want to be clear about something.  Is

          16   the only change with this analysis the use of the FGT

          17   March rate as opposed to the January rate?

          18        A    The change -- there are two changes.  They are

          19   both based on the FGT revised March 18th proposal.  We

          20   do revise the FGT rate for its proposal, but also I must

          21   remind the Commissioners that in FPL's own proposal of

          22   the FPL EnergySecure line and Company E, we assume that

          23   after the FPL EnergySecure line is -- fully subscribes

          24   to its ultimate capacity of 1.25 million cubic feet, we

          25   will then purchase power -- I mean gas transportation
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           1   from FGT.  Therefore, we also have to adjust that rate

           2   based on the update analysis.  We adjusted that rate so

           3   that the analysis was comparing apples to apples.

           4        Q    All right.  Let me make sure I understand what

           5   you said, to break it into parts.  The first thing you

           6   did was you used the FGT March rate proposal of $1.68;

           7   is that correct?

           8        A    That's correct.

           9        Q    And the second change you made, what was that?

          10        A    I also assumed that FGT rate of

          11   $1.68 escalated at 2-and-a-half percent, using FPL's own

          12   proposal and -- I'm sorry, FGT's own proposal for that

          13   gas that comes after the FPL EnergySecure line is fully

          14   subscribed.

          15        Q    So you otherwise applied the exact same

          16   methodology that you had used in your direct exhibit,

          17   excuse me, to the interrogatory response, except for the

          18   rate change?

          19        A    Right.  The one clarification, if I may, yes,

          20   I did within the original analysis.  We added another

          21   charge to FGT's proposal to get it to basically Transco

          22   85, 20 cents.  That was done in both the original

          23   analysis and in this analysis.

          24        Q    In the Interrogatory 27 response?

          25        A    That's correct.
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           1        Q    Okay.  I appreciate that.  Thank you.

           2             Now, starting on line 8 of page 4 of your

           3   rebuttal, you discuss the -- you discuss the adjustments

           4   that you made for what is your Exhibits JEE-10 and

           5   JEE-11, correct?

           6        A    Yes.

           7        Q    Okay.  Was the baseline for JEE-10 and 11 your

           8   direct testimony exhibit or the Interrogatory 27

           9   exhibit?

          10        A    The interrogatory 27 exhibit.

          11        Q    So JEE-10 and 11 reflects the March FGT rate;

          12   is that correct?

          13        A    I believe that's the case.

          14        Q    Okay.  And then you also had some questions --

          15   subsequent to the testimony and in your deposition, you

          16   prepared an additional analysis which has been

          17   identified as late-filed Deposition Exhibit No. 1, which

          18   I believe the staff asked you about yesterday.

          19        A    Yes.

          20             MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman, I have copies of this

          21        but I don't need to ask him necessarily those kinds

          22        of questions.  But if it's helpful, I've got copies

          23        if we need to to look at that.

          24             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You may proceed.

          25             MR. SELF:  Thank you.
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           1             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You're just using them for

           2        cross-examination purposes anyway, right?

           3             MR. SELF:  Yes, sir.  And it's already been

           4        admitted into the record.

           5             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Perko, do you need one?

           6        Do you need a copy?

           7             MR. PERKO:  Do you have the entire document?

           8             MR. SELF:  Yes.

           9             MR. PERKO:  I don't believe I have the entire

          10        document.  Thank you.

          11             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You may proceed.

          12             MR. SELF:  Thank you.

          13   BY MR. SELF:

          14        Q    Again, just so we're all on the same page

          15   here, Mr. Enjamio --

          16             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Hang on a second, Mr. Self.

          17        Hang on a second.

          18             Ms. Brown, do you need a copy for your

          19        purposes?

          20             MS. BROWN:  Actually, no, Mr. Chairman, but

          21        I'll take one.  We're going to have some questions

          22        on this exhibit as well.

          23             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  This must be a thrilling

          24        exhibit.  Nobody wants it.  You may proceed.

          25             THE WITNESS:  If I may, we're referring to
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           1        Deposition Exhibit No. 1; that's correct?

           2             MR. SELF:  Yes, sir.

           3   BY MR. SELF:

           4        Q    Now, as I understand the staff's request in

           5   terms of your preparing this, what you did was you used

           6   Dr. Morley's updated population forecasts that were

           7   supplied in response to the staff's request for her

           8   late-filed deposition Exhibit No. 1; is that correct?

           9        A    Oh, then apparently I'm looking at the wrong

          10   exhibit then.  I was referring to my deposition exhibit.

          11   You're asking about my late-filed exhibit?

          12        Q    Yes.

          13        A    I apologize.  I have the box.  Just one

          14   second.  My late-filed Exhibit No. 1, page 1 of 10?

          15        Q    Yes, sir.

          16        A    Yes, sir.  Go ahead.

          17        Q    Okay.  And -- and the change in this analysis

          18   was you used the revised population information that

          19   witness Morley provided in response to a staff

          20   late-filed deposition exhibit, correct?

          21        A    That's correct.

          22        Q    Okay.  Now, was the -- what was the baseline

          23   for this analysis other than Dr. Morley's change?  Was

          24   it the direct testimony exhibit, the Interrogatory 27

          25   response, or your rebuttal exhibit?
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           1        A    It's based on my direct testimony analysis,

           2   which I understood was the request of staff.

           3        Q    Okay.  So this Late-Filed Deposition

           4   Exhibit No. 1 reflects the FGT January rate, not the

           5   March rate?

           6        A    That's correct.

           7        Q    Okay.  Thank you.

           8             MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman, that's all.

           9             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Mr. Self.

          10             Ms. Brown, staff?

          11                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

          12   BY MS. BROWN:

          13        Q    Just a couple of questions, Mr. Enjamio, about

          14   that same exhibit that you have in front of you.  Page 4

          15   of 10, if you'll turn there.

          16        A    Yes.

          17        Q    There you show FPL's resource plan under three

          18   scenarios based on the load forecast that staff

          19   requested?

          20        A    Yes.

          21        Q    Under the base scenario it shows that nine

          22   combined cycle power plants will come in between 2021

          23   and 2030, correct?

          24        A    Correct.

          25        Q    Do you know in what year the first of those
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           1   nine plants will come in?

           2        A    Let me see if I have the information for that.

           3   One second, please.  (Examining documents.)  I do not

           4   have that with me, Ms. Brown.

           5             MS. BROWN:  Madam Chairman, could I ask for a

           6        late-filed exhibit on that subject?

           7             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, you may.  Mr. Perko?

           8             MR. PERKO:  Could you state what exactly you

           9        want?

          10             MS. BROWN:  We want to know in what year the

          11        first of those nine plants identified to come into

          12        service between 2021 and 2030 will actually come

          13        into service.

          14             MR. PERKO:  I assume that we can provide that.

          15             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  That will be exhibit --

          16        Commissioners, that will be Exhibit 100, and Nine

          17        Plant Combo Info.

          18             (Late-Filed Exhibit No. 100 was identified.)

          19             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  You may proceed.

          20             MS. BROWN:  Actually we have no further

          21        questions.

          22             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Edgar, you're

          23        recognized.

          24             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.  Good

          25        afternoon.
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           1             THE WITNESS:  Good afternoon.

           2             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You have to turn your mic

           3        on.

           4             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Sorry.  Thank you.  I

           5        could hear me fine.

           6             In your summary that you gave us of your

           7        rebuttal testimony, I believe you said that the --

           8        that the proposal utilizes the same -- quote, the

           9        same treatment as used by the Commission in recent

          10        memory.  And if I got that statement right, can

          11        you -- can you help me quantify or qualify that a

          12        little bit?  When you say "the same treatment as

          13        used by this Commission in recent memory," what

          14        types of projects, what types of alternatives?

          15        Could you just expand on that a little bit?

          16             THE WITNESS:  Sure, Commissioner.  First, what

          17        I should have said, it was used by FPL and accepted

          18        by this Commission.  Since I've done economic

          19        analyses some 25 years for FPL, we've always used

          20        the approach which we call the cumulative present

          21        value revenue requirements approach.

          22             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  I need you to say

          23        that one more time and more slowly.  I know it's in

          24        here but just so I get --

          25             THE WITNESS:  Cumulative present value revenue
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           1        requirements.  And basically what -- the basic

           2        concept is that the best alternative for the

           3        customer is that that results in the lowest cost to

           4        the customer over the life of the project.

           5             For projects such as generating units, and in

           6        this particular project were the comparison of the

           7        different alternatives under consideration, do not

           8        include an adjustment to the energy sales as a DSN.

           9        Then the cumulative present value revenue

          10        requirements will necessarily result in the lowest

          11        cost impact or rate impact to the customers over

          12        the life of the project.

          13             By revenue requirements of course we mean with

          14        the annual category of recurring charges,

          15        differences in fuel cost and any other costs

          16        associated with the project that I recover from the

          17        customers in some fashion, either through base

          18        rates or through a clause.

          19             So that the basic standard is that we look at

          20        all of the costs of the proposed alternatives,

          21        we -- we look at the -- we extend the analysis over

          22        the life of the longest -- the useful life of the

          23        longest break.  For example, we're comparing a

          24        40-year generating power plant or a power plant

          25        such as a coal unit that has a 40-year, or a
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           1        nuclear unit that has a 40-year useful life, we may

           2        compare that to -- compare that to a combined cycle

           3        that has a 25-year life.  We conduct the analysis

           4        over the 40-year life because that way we fully

           5        include all of the benefits of that project.

           6             The fact that we stop at 40 years doesn't mean

           7        there are no additional benefits after the fact, it

           8        just means that, in terms of depreciation, the

           9        decision was made that it's an appropriate useful

          10        life for that project.  So we stopped there.

          11             By doing that, we're making sure, we're doing

          12        an apples to apples comparison, that we're not

          13        cutting off one project before you have reached all

          14        its benefits so, you know, rates are treated

          15        fairly.

          16             This is the same approach that we used in the

          17        recent organizations, the nuclear need filings,

          18        have used by FPL in analyzing responses to requests

          19        for proposals for combined cycle generation.  So

          20        it's -- it's a long established methodology.

          21             And the only changes to our methodology that

          22        I'm aware of are not -- on the economics itself are

          23        the fact that assumptions change and we include our

          24        components.  So recently, for example, we started

          25        doing environmental costs.  But overall that
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           1        methodology has been used, as I said, for at least

           2        25 years and accepted by the Commission.

           3             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I appreciate those

           4        comments and I thank you for them.  I also would

           5        say that with your apples to apples comment, I -- I

           6        am hoping, just me personally, that there's

           7        positive utilization of nuclear plants beyond 40

           8        years.  That's my hope.

           9             But back to probably the more relevant point

          10        at hand.  When you talk about apples to apples, I'm

          11        not sure that a nuclear project necessarily is an

          12        apple to apple comparison on a 40-year lifetime to

          13        the type of project that we are talking about.  So

          14        is there a comparison that you could make that to a

          15        nonengineer like me seems a little more oranges to

          16        oranges?

          17             THE WITNESS:  Well, a transmission line, which

          18        I find --

          19             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Large transportation.

          20             THE WITNESS:  Which is a transportation asset,

          21        if we may insert electricity instead of gas, and

          22        it's treated the same way.  Now, the book life for

          23        a transmission line, I forget its exact book life,

          24        it's around 30, 35 years.

          25             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  So with the discussion
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           1        that you have laid out for us and the explanation

           2        about the best alternative being the lowest cost

           3        over the lifetime of the project for the payers,

           4        how do you balance that with the concern that, for

           5        this particular project, a portion of the capacity

           6        would not be utilized to the benefit of the

           7        ratepayers for a portion of the project early on

           8        but that they would still pay the full cost?

           9             THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  Commissioner Edgar, I

          10        have to disagree a little bit with the fact that

          11        the 200 -- that additional 200 million cubic feet

          12        is not used.  It is not required as firm capacity

          13        but it is used.  It's used -- in fact, the full 600

          14        will be fully utilized from day one.

          15             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Chair, could --

          16        I'm sorry, but could you speak up, sir?  I can't

          17        hear you.

          18             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Get closer to the mic.

          19             THE WITNESS:  Excuse me, Commissioner.

          20             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

          21             THE WITNESS:  Yes.  The full 600 will be

          22        utilized from day one.  It is not required for firm

          23        capacity but its use -- it was fully used because

          24        it's actually the lowest cost alternative to gas.

          25        It's the most efficient transportation.  So that
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           1        results in benefits in variable cost, in essence in

           2        fuel cost to FPL's customers.  Those benefits are

           3        included in my analysis.

           4             Another benefit which is not included in my

           5        analysis is the fact that FPL buys a lot of

           6        interruptible gas transportation or nonfirm gas

           7        transportation.  So an example I believe in the

           8        months of May and June, 40 days out of the 60 days

           9        FPL bought a significant amount of interruptible

          10        gas.  And over -- or I believe from March to date

          11        we spent some $3 million in interruptible

          12        transportation charges to FGT.

          13             Those will be avoided, so if that -- those

          14        200, the extra 200 are providing a benefit, that

          15        part was not included in my analysis.

          16             And then of course the other benefits are the

          17        possibility of third-party sales or release of

          18        capacity and other either FGT or the Gulfstream

          19        pipeline, which FPL has -- computed to be somewhere

          20        in the order of 200 and 700 million dollars over

          21        the life of the project.

          22             And the other benefits that I think are

          23        provided to -- from day one, first supplied

          24        diversity, I mean, in essence risk -- reduction to

          25        risk for having a third line pipeline.  So it's
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           1        increasing the infrastructure.

           2             And one last benefit I think is very important

           3        to consider, I think of it in a sense as insurance

           4        for either the laying of the nuclear units or

           5        insurance for the fact that we may actually be

           6        understating the load forecast, which is

           7        historically what's happened.

           8             So -- so what my -- just to summarize, there

           9        are benefits from day one and we actually use the

          10        full 600, but we don't need 600 of firm capacity.

          11             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  And I'm almost done,

          12        Mr. Chairman.  On a slightly different issue but

          13        related, and I posed a similar question that I'm

          14        about to ask you to one of the FGT witnesses,

          15        Langston, I think.  Putting it very simply,

          16        oversimplifying probably, but FPL for this proposed

          17        project has proposed full rate base recovery, full

          18        rate base recovery, and FGT has proposed a separate

          19        subsidiary.

          20             Is there a third option that's kind of maybe

          21        takes the best of both and gives us a third

          22        alternative to review and examine and account and

          23        recover costs?

          24             THE WITNESS:  I do not believe so,

          25        Commissioner Edgar.  FGT's proposal of a subsidiary
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           1        to me adds no value to the -- it only adds cost and

           2        complexity.  The current accounting, I'm not an

           3        accountant but I'm sure current accounting

           4        practices as audited by Commission staff adequately

           5        cover right to review the cost of the project.  So

           6        all a subsidiary would do was add additional cost

           7        and additional complexity, may raise a figure

           8        outside your concerns.  So it brings no value to

           9        the -- to a transaction in answer to the project.

          10             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

          11             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, anything

          12        further?  Redirect?

          13             MR. PERKO:  Very briefly.  If I could just

          14        have one second.

          15             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Take a minute.

          16             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Chairman?

          17             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, ma'am?

          18             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  This is Commissioner Skop.

          19             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, sir.  You're coming in

          20        muffled, Commissioner, sorry.  You're recognized.

          21             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  Just as a

          22        point of clarification to Commissioner Edgar's

          23        question, if I thought I heard the response

          24        correctly from the witness, it was that

          25        notwithstanding the fact that the two modernization
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           1        plants required 400 million cubic feet, the extra

           2        200 million would be utilized although not utilized

           3        as firm committed capacity; is that correct?

           4             THE WITNESS:  Yes, it is, Commissioner Skop.

           5             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Thank you.

           6             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Commissioner.

           7             Commissioners, anything further?

           8             Mr. Perko, redirect.

           9             MR. PERKO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          10                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

          11   BY MR. PERKO:

          12        Q    Very briefly.  Mr. Enjamio, in your discussion

          13   of your analysis of Late-Filed Exhibit No. 1, Deposition

          14   Exhibit No. 1, I think there was some discussion that

          15   this may have been based on an updated analysis from

          16   Dr. Morley.  Was this actually an updated analysis or

          17   was it based on the sensitivity analysis that staff had

          18   requested from Dr. Morley?

          19        A    It was based on the sensitivity analysis as

          20   was requested from Dr. Morley.

          21        Q    From staff?

          22        A    By staff.

          23        Q    And if I could just refer you to page 3 of

          24   your Late-Filed Deposition Exhibit 1.

          25        A    Yes.
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           1        Q    Could you just explain what information that

           2   provides?

           3             MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman, I would object.  He's

           4        already discussed this page when the staff asked

           5        about the exhibit yesterday.

           6             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  He was cross-examined on it

           7        by staff today though.  Ms. Helton, if I'm right,

           8        did you not question him on that?

           9             MS. BROWN:  We questioned him on page 4.

          10             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  On page 4?

          11             MS. BROWN:  Uh-huh.

          12             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Ms. Helton?

          13             MS. HELTON:  And I'm sorry, I didn't hear

          14        Mr. Perko say which page he was questioning him on.

          15             MR. PERKO:  Page 3.

          16             MR. SELF:  My objection is yesterday in

          17        response to questioning about this exhibit,

          18        Mr. Perko asked Mr. Enjamio to explain what's on

          19        page 3 and he just asked him the same question.  So

          20        we -- it's cumulative.

          21             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Let's not go to page 3 then.

          22        Let's -- I remember in the subject matter staff was

          23        asking questions but he was only cross-examined on

          24        that point.  So on redirect what you're dealing

          25        with is what was asked on cross-examination, so
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           1        let's kind of tighten it up a little.

           2             MR. PERKO:  I will withdraw the question.

           3             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.

           4             MR. PERKO:  Nothing further.

           5             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Exhibits?

           6             MR. PERKO:  I believe the only exhibits have

           7        been labeled 85, 86, and 87.

           8             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Are there any

           9        objections?

          10             MR. SELF:  No objections.

          11             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection show

          12        Exhibits 85, 86 and 87 entered in.

          13             (Exhibits 85, 86, and 87 were admitted into

          14   the record.)

          15             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Mr. Enjamio.

          16        Have a great day.

          17             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

          18             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Call your next witness.

          19             MR. PERKO:  FPL calls Jonathan D. Ogur.

          20             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  While we're getting there, I

          21        did have an opportunity to think further about your

          22        request, Mr. Butler.  And I remember your --

          23        Mr. Self, your perspective on that and I've had an

          24        opportunity to listen to your arguments as well as

          25        I've talked to Ms. Helton, and I'm going to rule
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           1        that inadmissible.

           2             MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

           3             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You may proceed.

           4             MR. PERKO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           5                      JONATHAN D. OGUR

           6   was called as a witness on behalf of FPL, and having

           7   been duly sworn, testifies as follows:

           8                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

           9   BY MR. PERKO:

          10        Q    Mr. Ogur, have you been sworn?

          11        A    Yes, I have.

          12        Q    If you could state your full name and business

          13   address for the record, please.

          14        A    Yes.  I'm Jonathan D. Ogur.  My business

          15   address is 1155 15th Street Northwest, Suite 400,

          16   Washington, D.C.  20005.

          17        Q    Mr. Ogur, did you have an occasion to prepare

          18   and cause to be filed 17 pages of rebuttal testimony in

          19   this proceeding?

          20        A    Yes, I did.

          21        Q    And attached to that testimony was an exhibit

          22   preliminarily identified as Exhibit JDO-3; is that

          23   correct?

          24        A    Yes, that's correct.

          25             MR. PERKO:  And for the record, that exhibit
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           1        has been identified on staff's comprehensive

           2        exhibit list as No. 88.

           3             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  For identification purposes,

           4        No. 88.

           5             (Exhibit No. 88 marked for identification.)

           6   BY MR. PERKO:

           7        Q    Mr. Ogur, do you have any changes or additions

           8   to your rebuttal testimony or Exhibit JDO-3?

           9        A    No, I do not.

          10        Q    If I were to ask you the same questions in

          11   your testimony today, would your answers be the same?

          12        A    Yes, they would.

          13             MR. PERKO:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, we'd

          14        ask that Mr. Ogur's rebuttal testimony be admitted

          15        into the record as though read.

          16             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

          17        the witness will be inserted into the record as

          18        though read.

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
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           1   BY MR. PERKO:

           2        Q    Mr. Ogur, have you prepared a summary of your

           3   rebuttal testimony?

           4        A    Yes, I have.

           5        Q    Could you please provide that at this time?

           6        A    Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners.

           7   In my rebuttal testimony I respond to the direct

           8   testimony of FGT witnesses Schlesinger and Langston.  In

           9   general, these FGT witnesses have adopted an overly

          10   simplistic and extreme position based on incorrect

          11   assumptions and analysis.

          12             FGT witness Schlesinger is incorrect when he

          13   asserts that FERC has eliminated market power from gas

          14   transmission markets.  For one thing, the FERC disagrees

          15   with him.  FERC recognizes a trade-off between two

          16   goals, promoting efficiency and protecting against the

          17   exercise of market power.  As a result, FERC does not

          18   claim to have eliminated market power from gas

          19   transmission markets.  In fact, gas transmission markets

          20   in Florida have structures that are conducive to the

          21   exercise of market power.  They have high seller

          22   concentration, there are only four pipelines that serve

          23   Florida, and most markets are served by only one or two.

          24             The markets also have low levels of excess

          25   capacity, both FGT and Gulfstream, the incumbent
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           1   pipelines in most markets, fully subscribed.

           2             Next, FGT witness Langston is mistaken when he

           3   claims that entry of a new pipeline into Florida Gas

           4   Transmission markets will yield no competitive benefits.

           5   In fact, FGT witness Schlesinger has testified to the

           6   benefits of entry of a new pipeline, and here it's

           7   important to distinguish between the entry of a new

           8   pipeline and the construction of an additional pipe by

           9   an incumbent pipeline.  These are two different, very

          10   different events in terms of their impact on

          11   competition.

          12             Entry by the Florida EnergySecure line will

          13   promote competition and efficiency to the benefit of

          14   Florida consumers because it is the entry of a new

          15   pipeline into Florida Gas Transmission markets.

          16             FGT witness Schlesinger uses the term private

          17   driveway to characterize the Florida EnergySecure line.

          18   This is a misleading term.  In fact, FPL will make

          19   capacity it does not use, up to 200 MMcf per day

          20   initially, available to third-party shippers.  And even

          21   if FPL uses all capacity on the Florida EnergySecure

          22   line, it will promote competition, as I pointed out

          23   yesterday.

          24             FGT witnesses' references to open access

          25   overlooked the purpose of the Florida EnergySecure line
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           1   and FPL's commitments in connection with its investment.

           2   The purpose of the Florida EnergySecure line is to

           3   deliver gas to FPL generation expansions.  Consistent

           4   with that purpose, FPL will use the pipeline first and

           5   foremost to serve its own gas supply requirements.  At

           6   the same time, the Florida EnergySecure line will

           7   promote competition and efficiency, thereby benefiting

           8   Florida consumers.

           9             To the extent that FPL's use of the Florida

          10   EnergySecure line makes capacity available on intrastate

          11   pipelines, FPL will release its capacity following the

          12   requirements of the FERC.

          13             To the extent that FPL does not use

          14   capacity --

          15             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Pull your mic a little

          16        closer to you.

          17             THE WITNESS:  Yes, sure.

          18             To the extent that FPL does not use capacity

          19        on the Florida EnergySecure line initially, FPL

          20        will make the unused capacity available to

          21        third-party shippers on a nondiscriminatory basis

          22        in accordance with Florida law and the rules of the

          23        Florida Public Service Commission.

          24             Finally, FGT witness Langston's concerns

          25        related to the Florida EnergySecure line's
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           1        inclusion in FPL's electric rate base are unfounded

           2        and self-serving.  In fact, FGT is the large

           3        incumbent pipeline in this case that possesses

           4        market power, is fully subscribed under long-term

           5        contracts, many of them 20 to 25 years, and is in

           6        this proceeding opposing new entry that would

           7        reduce its market power.

           8             Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, when you consider

           9        these issues, I believe it is important to remember

          10        that the Florida EnergySecure line will increase

          11        economic efficiency and competition and provide

          12        substantial benefits to Florida consumers.

          13             That completes my summary.  Thank you for your

          14        attention.

          15             MR. PERKO:  We tender the witness for

          16        cross-examination.

          17             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?

          18             MR. SELF:  No questions.

          19             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Staff?

          20             MS. BROWN:  No questions.

          21             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners?  Exhibit?

          22        No. 88?

          23             MR. PERKO:  Yes, sir.

          24             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Are there any objections?

          25             MR. SELF:  No objection.
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           1             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

           2        done.

           3             (Exhibit No. 88 admitted into the record.)

           4             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Mr. Ogur.  Have a

           5        nice day.

           6             Call your next witness.

           7             MR. PERKO:  FPL calls Mr. Timothy C. Sexton.

           8                      TIMOTHY C. SEXTON

           9   was called as a witness on behalf of FPL, and having

          10   been duly sworn, testifies as follows:

          11                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

          12   BY MR. PERKO:

          13        Q    Mr. Sexton, you have been sworn; is that

          14   correct?

          15        A    Yes, I have.

          16        Q    If you could please state your full name and

          17   business address for the record.

          18        A    Yes.  My name is Timothy C. Sexton, and my

          19   business address is 14811 St. Mary's Lane, Suite 175,

          20   Houston, Texas, 77079.

          21        Q    Mr. Sexton, did you prepare and have caused to

          22   be filed rebuttal testimony consisting of 23 pages in

          23   this proceeding?

          24        A    Yes, I did.

          25        Q    And attached to that testimony did you include
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           1   exhibits that have been preliminarily labeled TC-8

           2   through TC-13 -- TCS-8 through TCS-13?

           3        A    Yes, I did.

           4             MR. PERKO:  For the record, those have been

           5        labeled on the comprehensive list as Exhibit --

           6             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  I'm sorry, but I

           7        cannot hear you.

           8             MR. PERKO:  I'm sorry, Commissioner.  For the

           9        record, those exhibits have been labeled Exhibits

          10        89 through 94 on the comprehensive exhibit list.

          11             (Exhibits 89 through 94 were identified.)

          12   BY MR. PERKO:

          13        Q    Mr. Sexton, do you have any changes or

          14   additions to your rebuttal testimony or exhibits?

          15        A    No, I do not.

          16        Q    Have you prepared a summary of your rebuttal

          17   testimony?

          18        A    Yes, I have.

          19        Q    I'm sorry.  If I were to ask you the questions

          20   in your testimony today, would your answers be the same?

          21        A    Yes, they would.

          22             MR. PERKO:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, we'd

          23        request that Mr. Sexton's rebuttal testimony be

          24        admitted into the record as though read.

          25             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of
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           1        the witness will be inserted into the record as

           2        though read.  You may proceed.

           3

           4

           5

           6

           7

           8

           9

          10

          11

          12
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          14

          15

          16
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          18

          19
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          21

          22

          23

          24
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           1   BY MR. PERKO:

           2        Q    Mr. Sexton, have you prepared a summary of

           3   your rebuttal testimony?

           4        A    Yes, I have.

           5        Q    Could you provide that at this time?

           6        A    Sure.  Good afternoon, Chairman Carter,

           7   Commissioners.

           8             The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to

           9   comment on the testimony of FGT witnesses Langston and

          10   Schlesinger.  Specifically I present the results of my

          11   economic analysis comparing the Florida EnergySecure

          12   line project to FGT's March 18th, 2009 proposal as

          13   discussed in FGT's testimony.

          14             I address FGT's testimony concerning FPL's

          15   methodology for developing its long-range forecast of

          16   natural gas prices; I address FGT's claims regarding the

          17   liquidity of natural gas supplies available to the

          18   Florida EnergySecure line at Transco Station 85 versus

          19   liquidity of gas supplies available to the FGT system in

          20   the Mobile Bay area of upstream sources, and I rebut

          21   FGT's claims regarding the potential cost for FPL to

          22   access supplies at Transco Station 85, be it the

          23   services presented in FGT's March 2009 proposal.

          24             With respect to liquidity of natural gas

          25   supplies, a liquid market is a market in which there are
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           1   a large number of willing and able buyers and sellers

           2   for the underlying product.  As such, the liquidity of a

           3   gas market can be evaluated based upon the number of gas

           4   buyers and sellers ready, willing, and able to purchase

           5   and sell gas supplies at the market location.

           6             FGT witnesses Schlesinger and Langston

           7   asserted that the liquidity of supply access at

           8   Perryville will exceed the liquidity of gas supply

           9   access at Transco Station 85 in the future.  While I

          10   believe that Transco Station 85 will provide a liquid

          11   market due to the significant number of buyers and

          12   sellers available at that location, I think it's

          13   important to point out that FGT's proposal did not offer

          14   to provide FPL direct access to the Perryville hub.

          15   Rather, what FPL offered to provide FPL with was access

          16   to FGT zone 3 in the Mobile Bay area.  This location is

          17   about 250 miles southeast of Perryville.

          18             As explained in my rebuttal testimony, an

          19   overriding fact that must be considered in evaluating

          20   the liquidity of supplies available into the

          21   EnergySecure line project and the Transco Station 85

          22   area versus those available into FGT's proposed project

          23   in the Mobile Bay area is that producers have made

          24   substantial investments in pipeline capacity expansions

          25   that result in the construction of the MidContinent
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           1   Express and Boardwalk Pipeline projects.  These

           2   pipelines serve as a direct link between Transco Station

           3   85 and growing unconventional supply sources as well as

           4   the Perryville hub.

           5             Perhaps more importantly, the fact that the

           6   producers hold the capacity on these pipelines serves to

           7   ensure that these producers will provide ready, willing

           8   and able sellers of unconventional gas supplies at

           9   Transco Station 85, which will serve to create a liquid

          10   market at this location.

          11             In contrast, the only direct link between

          12   Perryville and FGT in the Mobile Bay area is the SESH

          13   pipeline.  Unlike the pipelines in the Transco Station

          14   85, where capacity was contracted for by the producers

          15   seeking enhanced market access, 90 percent of the

          16   capacity in the SESH pipeline is held by end users.

          17   While the vast majority of this capacity held by end

          18   users purchasing supplies at Perryville -- I'm sorry,

          19   with the vast majority of the capacity on that line held

          20   by end users purchasing supplies at Perryville, it's

          21   unlikely that these capacity holders would sell such

          22   supplies under peak day conditions to other end users

          23   such as FPL.

          24             As a result, unlike the capacity constructed

          25   into Transco Station 85, the capacity on SESH built into
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           1   in FGT's Mobile Bay area has not introduced a large

           2   number of sellers of unconventional supplies to this

           3   location and, as a result, has not increased the gas

           4   market liquidity at this location.

           5             With respect to the capacity that FGT stated

           6   was available from Transco Station 85 to FGT zone 3 via

           7   Transco's proposed 4A lateral expansion, I note in my

           8   rebuttal testimony that this capacity is no longer

           9   available.

          10             With respect to Transco's initial Phase I

          11   expansion project, the project is fully subscribed and

          12   it has a target in-service date of May 2010.  Further,

          13   with respect to Transco's Phase II expansion project,

          14   Transco has indicated that it's in discussion with

          15   interested parties for the full capacity of this

          16   expansion.  Perhaps more importantly is this project

          17   also has a target in-service date of May 2011.

          18             As incremental capacity and supplies are

          19   limited into FGT and Mobile Bay, if FPL were to accept

          20   FGT's proposal, FPL would necessarily need to contract

          21   for capacity upstream of this location.  To this end,

          22   the most economic upstream capacity project available to

          23   support FPL's requirements under the FGT proposal would

          24   be a construction project from Transco Station 85 to FGT

          25   near Mobile Bay.
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           1             Finally, as a part of my rebuttal testimony,

           2   I've developed an independent evaluation of the overall

           3   long-term cost of gas impact associated with the Florida

           4   EnergySecure line versus FGT's proposal submitted in

           5   March of 2009.

           6             As I discussed in my testimony, the results of

           7   this evaluation continue to indicate that FPL made the

           8   best choice for its customers in selecting the Florida

           9   EnergySecure line project to meets its future natural

          10   gas needs.

          11             MR. PERKO:  We tender the witness for

          12        cross-examination.

          13             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

          14             Mr. Self?

          15             MR. SELF:  No questions.

          16             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Staff?

          17             MS. BROWN:  No questions.

          18             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners?

          19             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Chair.

          20             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Skop, you're

          21        recognized.

          22             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Sexton, just one quick

          23        question.  With respect to your rebuttal testimony,

          24        you identify I believe a cost savings at the lower

          25        end of cumulative revenue requirements of

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        879

           1        $123 million; is that correct?

           2             THE WITNESS:  Let me -- I believe that's

           3        correct.  Yes, sir, that's correct.

           4             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  With respect to

           5        that, I know that the gas analysis under I believe

           6        it was case C with the off-system sales, that would

           7        be the low end of your projected savings.  And I'm

           8        wondering if that were repriced to reflect current

           9        natural gas prices, whether there's any chance -- I

          10        think it would probably be remote but I wanted to

          11        ask the question -- whether that number would turn

          12        negative.

          13             And the reason I ask is that there's been 36

          14        scenarios run, and only one of which has seen a

          15        negative value for the base case.  So I'm just

          16        trying to understand the sensitivity of the numbers

          17        and the savings -- projected savings as they

          18        pertain to near term natural gas prices.

          19             THE WITNESS:  Sure.  I think the best way to

          20        answer that, Commissioner Skop, is that yes, the

          21        base case analysis that I had in here showed

          22        $123 million of savings, as it also portrays with

          23        the value of capacity release that economics could

          24        get as high as $760 million in favor of the

          25        project.
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           1             But based on the $123 million number, I think

           2        what I would refer to is Witness Enjamio did run

           3        some analysis with gas price variances in response

           4        to some interrogatories.  And as I recall, I think

           5        the analyses that he ran had a plus or minus

           6        10 percent cost differential with respect to the

           7        gas prices.  And within his analysis, what he wound

           8        up with was a, I believe it was plus or minus 10 to

           9        12 million on either side.

          10             With my analysis, if I change the gas price by

          11        plus or minus 10 percent, I would have a result

          12        that is consistent with the result that he had.  I

          13        have not run that analysis but I can tell you,

          14        based on knowing my analysis and knowing the

          15        results of his, that I would most likely end up

          16        with a plus or minus 10 to 15-million-dollar

          17        number, which in turn would keep this positive.

          18        The $123 million, at worst case, you're probably

          19        looking at about $110 million in favor of the FPL

          20        Florida EnergySecure line project.

          21             And once again, that's the base case low end.

          22        If you take into account the capacity release

          23        credits, the -- the potential capacity release

          24        credits, the range that gets as high as

          25        $706 million may fall to $750 million.
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           1             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  That's what I

           2        was looking to do, is establish on a worst case,

           3        you know, what the potential would be for a --

           4        undesirable outcome as opposed to running the

           5        sensitivities on a variety of options.  I

           6        appreciate the response to that.

           7             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Chairman?

           8             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Argenziano.

           9             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Yes.  And I'm not

          10        sure Mr. Sexton is the right person to ask this,

          11        and if not, just say so and if we need to call back

          12        the next witness, I'm not sure.

          13             I've been taking in a lot of information and

          14        reserving questions, but the one that keeps coming

          15        back to me -- and they've done a good job, both

          16        sides have done a good job of answering a lot of

          17        questions -- but the one that comes back to me --

          18        and forgive me if this was asked, I had to step out

          19        briefly to run to the doctor very quickly but --

          20        and I may have missed it.

          21             And I guess what I want to sum up is, I need

          22        to know the benefit to the ratepayer in paying --

          23        you know, start paying for the pipeline in 2014.

          24        Can you sum that up for me, or would somebody else

          25        be able to do that?
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           1             And then if there are cap and trade and if

           2        there are federal regulations or federal rulings

           3        that come down, and if there's any chance of

           4        divestiture in the future, what happens to the --

           5        to the -- you know, to the ratepayers who paid for

           6        that and the possibility of that coming down the

           7        line?  And I'm not sure you're the right person to

           8        answer those questions, but those are the ones that

           9        remain on my list.

          10             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Sexton, you should give

          11        it a shot.

          12             THE WITNESS:  It's always worth a try, isn't

          13        it?  I think I can agree with you that with respect

          14        to the ratepayer and the ratemaking mechanisms in

          15        the state of Florida, I'm not sure I'm the correct

          16        witness to answer that question.  If I understand

          17        your question correctly, you're asking to bring the

          18        project in in 2014?

          19             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Well, what is the

          20        benefit to the ratepayer today to start paying for

          21        something that's coming down the line and with the

          22        possibilities of possible divestures?  And I guess

          23        also if the company is going to make a profit,

          24        which is great, in sharing that pipeline, do the --

          25        do the ratepayers of today share in those profits?
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           1             THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I'd have to tell you that

           2        that's probably -- I'm probably not the correct

           3        witness for that.  I think what we're talking about

           4        is rates within the state of Florida as well as

           5        some internal policy discussions from FPL and

           6        myself being an outside witness and not familiar

           7        with the details.

           8             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Okay.

           9        Then --

          10             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner --

          11        Commissioners, let's do this.  Let's see if we can

          12        get Mr. Enjamio.

          13             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Yeah, I think, I

          14        think that's why I began that way.  I didn't want

          15        the witness to think I was fighting him, his

          16        expertise.

          17             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler, do you think

          18        Mr. Enjamio would be the best witness?  What do you

          19        think?

          20             MR. BUTLER:  Either he or Mr. Forrest.  Let me

          21        try Mr. Enjamio and see how that works.

          22             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  And Mr. Forrest is still

          23        here, right?  Good.  Let's try --

          24             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Chairman?

          25             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, sir, you're recognized.
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           1             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.  Just on top of

           2        Commissioner Argenziano's question, I also have a

           3        question along the same lines, a little different.

           4             Has FPL looked at the possibility of selling

           5        firm transport, the excess firm transport -- excuse

           6        me, the excess firm transport, being the

           7        200 million cubic feet, from the in-service date of

           8        the pipeline that's needed in 2021 to make it more

           9        cost-effective to the consumers in terms of

          10        referring to a Florida based utility?

          11             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Let me do this,

          12        Commissioner.  I think we're going to pull Mr.

          13        Enjamio and also have on deck Mr. Forrest for those

          14        two questions.  Let me do this procedurally.  Are

          15        there any further questions for this current

          16        witness that we have, Mr. Sexton?  Any redirect?

          17             MR. PERKO:  No redirect.

          18             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Let's deal with the

          19        exhibits.  It will be Exhibits No. 89 through 94.

          20        Any objections, Mr. Self?

          21             MR. SELF:  No objection.

          22             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection show it

          23        done.

          24             (Exhibits 89 through 94 admitted into the

          25   record.)
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           1             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Mr. Sexton.  Have

           2        a nice day.

           3             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

           4             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Enjamio, will you come

           5        and join us for a moment and then we'll ask Mr. --

           6        Mr. Forrest, if -- Mr. Butler, do you think those

           7        would be the appropriate witnesses, or what do you

           8        think?

           9             MR. BUTLER:  I do.  I think those would

          10        probably be the two most appropriate.  The second

          11        question, Commissioner Skop's question, I'm

          12        suspecting that Mr. Forrest would be the one to

          13        address that.  We'll have Mr. Enjamio address

          14        Commissioner Argenziano's questions first.

          15             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Did you hear

          16        Commissioner Argenziano's questions, Mr. Enjamio?

          17        I mess your name up every time I say it.  I had it

          18        right once.  Hang on one second.  Just give me one

          19        second.

          20             (Off the record.)

          21             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, we're going

          22        to take five.  I'm needing to organize something

          23        procedurally.  Let's just take five.

          24             Mr. Self and Mr. Butler, I need to see you at

          25        the corner bench.
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           1             We'll come back at 5 after.

           2             (Break taken.)

           3             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  We're back and we're trying

           4        to bring us back around here.  We're going to deal

           5        first with Commissioner Argenziano's question and

           6        then, Commissioner Skop, we'll get to your question

           7        after that.

           8             First, Commissioner Argenziano, as I

           9        understand your question was you wanted to know

          10        what was the benefit to the ratepayer if they start

          11        paying for the pipeline in 2014; is that correct?

          12             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Well, that's part of

          13        it.

          14             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  And what happens to the

          15        ratepayers if there's a cap and trade coming down

          16        from the feds?

          17             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Well, and

          18        divestiture in general.  There's a couple of parts

          19        to each question.  So one's about current

          20        ratepayers and benefits of the future and the other

          21        is about divestiture.

          22             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Commissioner, just

          23        ask one, because it's kind of coming in and out on

          24        the sound.  Let's just ask the first one and then

          25        you can ask the second one, okay?
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           1             And we're going to have -- what we're going to

           2        do, Commissioner, is that we're going to have --

           3        both parties given an opportunity to answer your

           4        question.

           5             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Great, great.  I

           6        appreciate that very much.  Thank you.

           7             If you can explain to me if the pipeline goes

           8        into rate base in 2014, what benefit will the

           9        ratepayer start to receive and when, you know, and

          10        how much of a benefit?  Or do we have an idea for

          11        those early -- you know, for those people that were

          12        paying early, the ratepayers today?

          13             And the second part was -- do you want me to

          14        do that first?  If that can be answered.

          15             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Langston with FGT.

          16        Mr. Langston and then we'll have Mr. Enjamio from

          17        FPL.

          18             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  That's great.  And

          19        if I need to repeat it, I will.

          20             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Mr. Langston.

          21             MR. LANGSTON:  Thank you.

          22             Commissioner, from FGT's perspective, even

          23        utilizing FPL's analysis, there is a net cost to

          24        the ratepayers under the intrastate pipeline

          25        proposal for at least the first eight years, and
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           1        that cost is not overcome until the project has

           2        been in service for a total of 27 years.  And

           3        that's assuming the in-service date of January 1 of

           4        2014.

           5             I believe there's also a request that FPL has

           6        made to begin accruing allowance for funds used

           7        during construction beginning January 1 of 2010.

           8        So I think there's going to be cost accrued on this

           9        project beginning fairly quickly.

          10             Our whole testimony is that there are various

          11        differences in the way FPL has done their analysis

          12        to where, even over a 40-year life, I think the one

          13        that FPL did in response to staff's request is a

          14        simple change in the population forecast that

          15        generates negative comparison economically.

          16             There's additional economic issues, such as

          17        the added cost from Transco Station 85 to

          18        Citronelle, depreciation on the back end of the

          19        intrastate pipeline proposal, those sorts of

          20        things.

          21             Our perspective is this is not a proposal

          22        that's beneficial to ratepayers.  And even under

          23        FPL's proposal, it doesn't on a cumulative basis

          24        benefit anyone, even if their analysis is correct

          25        for 27 years.
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           1             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Now let's give

           2        Mr. Enjamio from FPL an opportunity to respond to

           3        the question.

           4             Thank you, Mr. Langston.  Don't go far.

           5             MR. ENJAMIO:  Commissioner Argenziano, I'll

           6        start by responding to the same question that

           7        Mr. Langston responded to.

           8             First, I'll disagree with Mr. Langston.  The

           9        load forecast sensitivity analysis that was done at

          10        the request of staff did not result in savings.  So

          11        on the average it's positive.  On two or three

          12        cases it's negative.  But they're overcome by the

          13        values on the third case.

          14             And in many cases, as I stated several times,

          15        those -- those economics don't include many other

          16        benefits.  Third-party sales, release or avoidance

          17        of firm -- nonfirm or interrupted transportation

          18        costs, benefits of competition, plus another

          19        factor, you know, the reliability benefits.  So I

          20        disagree with that.

          21             I think, on the whole, that scenario shows

          22        that FPL is -- FPL's proposal is still a better

          23        economic proposal, even under that load forecast

          24        scenario.

          25             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  So are you saying --
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           1        what I need to know probably is in 2014, what

           2        benefits will the ratepayers start to see or

           3        receive?  And then do we know what kind of a

           4        benefit to the earlier ratepayers?  You know, is

           5        there much of a benefit to the early ratepayers

           6        who are going to be paying now?  That's the

           7        questions we're going to be asked.

           8             MR. ENJAMIO:  Yes, ma'am. Commissioner

           9        Argenziano, first FPL will start recovering costs

          10        from the cost of 2014 once the line is -- the

          11        pipeline is in service.  We will accrue revenue

          12        before that but that's standard on all capital

          13        projects.  We accrue revenue for the project and

          14        then will recover those charges together with the

          15        capital once the product goes in service.

          16             So the customer will start seeing a rate

          17        impact in 2014.  When he starts seeing the rate

          18        impact he's going to get the full benefits.  He's

          19        going to get reduced fuel savings, he's going to

          20        get ability to make sales to third-party sales,

          21        which will reduce the cost of the pipeline, he will

          22        get the benefits of all of the other reliability

          23        benefits.

          24             But the most important part is that even

          25        though on a total cost basis or total rate impact
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           1        basis, on the earlier years, which -- 2014 to 2021,

           2        the FPL customer will see somewhat higher rate with

           3        the FPL proposal, once again, if we don't include

           4        these other benefits that I've mentioned several

           5        times.

           6             But over the life of the project, the customer

           7        is much better off.  And that's being shown under

           8        quite a few scenarios that we have done.

           9             So the customer will get benefits from the

          10        very beginning, from day one, that they go in

          11        service.  In the early years those benefits do not

          12        offset the cost but, however, over the product life

          13        they more than overcome the cost, so the customer

          14        is better off.

          15             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Did you just say the

          16        customer will derive benefits from day one, meaning

          17        in 2014, or now, while they're paying for the

          18        pipeline?

          19             MR. ENJAMIO:  No.  Commissioner, what I'm

          20        saying is that they don't derive benefits until

          21        2014, but on a total rate impact basis, those

          22        benefits do not overcome the cost.  So on a rate

          23        impact basis, they are receiving a somewhat higher

          24        rate on the FPL proposal in 2014 through 2021.

          25             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  It won't be until
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           1        2021 that they actually start receiving some

           2        benefit from --

           3             MR. ENJAMIO:  2022 they'll start seeing lower

           4        rates as a result of this.  But once again,

           5        Commissioners, I believe the proper standard to use

           6        in any economic analysis of this sort is long-term

           7        community present value impact on the customers.

           8             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  I'm understanding

           9        that, and I appreciate that.  And I think you

          10        answered the first question.  And let me ask you

          11        this, because, you know, what I hear from people

          12        is -- you know, I'm not even going to be around,

          13        and we hear this on more than one -- one case

          14        before us, and I'm just trying to figure out if you

          15        can give me the benefits to requiring early -- the

          16        early ratepayers paying for the full pipeline.

          17        What are those benefits?  Get down the line from

          18        what I hear you say there's benefits, but there's

          19        really no benefits to the early ratepayer; is that

          20        correct?

          21             MR. ENJAMIO:  Well, there's no net benefit.

          22        There are benefits in the early years that are

          23        offset by some of the costs.

          24             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Okay.  Thank

          25        you.
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           1             And then, Mr. Chair, just a question or two on

           2        divestiture.

           3             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You're recognized.  And

           4        we'll have Mr. Langston come up first and then --

           5        same order, Commissioner.  But go ahead and ask

           6        your question.

           7             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.  If we

           8        grant the petition, FPL's petition, and the

           9        pipeline is built and placed into electric rate

          10        base and then at some future point somewhere down

          11        the line, either this Commission or some other

          12        jurisdiction -- jurisdictional agency decides that

          13        the pipeline should be divested from the electric

          14        company, how would that be handled and how would

          15        the ratepayer who will start paying in 2014 be

          16        compensated?

          17             I mean, we've heard a lot of testimony about

          18        the long-term or future benefits of two future

          19        ratepayers that the pipeline is divested.  How will

          20        those future benefits be captured by the

          21        ratepayers?

          22             MR. ENJAMIO:  Well, Commissioner Argenziano,

          23        FPL has not considered divestiture and it does not

          24        see a scenario where divestiture would come into

          25        play.
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           1             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  I do as a

           2        possibility.  I'm not saying it's going to happen,

           3        but I'm trying to cover the bases, I'm trying to

           4        figure out what we do -- you know, what happens to

           5        the ratepayers who are paying for that then; are

           6        they stranded?  Do they never get their recovery?

           7        And, you know, I see possibilities down the line

           8        that could happen and with concern --

           9             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner, hang on for a

          10        second.  We have got thrown for a loop here.  What

          11        we're doing is we're having both parties have an

          12        opportunity to respond.

          13             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  I see.

          14             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  So if you can kind of hold

          15        up for a minute.  What we're trying to do is have

          16        Mr. Langston go first.

          17             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  I thought

          18        Mr. Langston sounded suddenly different.

          19             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  He lost his accent.  So if

          20        you don't mind, Commissioner, can you please ask

          21        your question again, and then we'll go to Mr.

          22        Langston and then Mr. Enjamio.

          23             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Sure.  Okay.  And as

          24        I said, if the petition was granted and the

          25        pipeline was built and placed into the electric
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           1        rate base and then it later on, either by this

           2        Commission or another jurisdiction agency, decided

           3        that the pipeline should be divested from the

           4        electric company, how will that be handled?  How

           5        could it be handled?

           6             And my concern with that, I can see a

           7        scenario, I'm not saying it will happen, but how

           8        will the ratepayer who will start paying in 2014 --

           9        let's forget about even the ratepayer now -- but

          10        the ratepayer starting to pay in 2014 be

          11        compensated?  And then if the pipeline is divested,

          12        how will those future benefits be captured by the

          13        ratepayers?  Because all of a sudden it will be,

          14        I'm sorry, it's not our fault, we've been divested

          15        and you lose.  And I'm trying to figure out what

          16        happens in those scenarios for both parties,

          17        please.  Thank you.

          18             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Langston.

          19             MR. ENJAMIO:  I was going to say I'm going to

          20        pass the ball to my colleague, Mr. Forester,

          21        standing next to me.

          22             MR. LANGSTON:  Would you all like me to

          23        respond first?

          24             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Langston first.  You're

          25        recognized, sir.  And then Mr. Sexton.
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           1             MR. LANGSTON:  Thank you.

           2             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Actually Mr. Forrest.

           3             MR. LANGSTON:  I think my response to this

           4        question is obviously if there's any ordered or

           5        regulatory required divestiture in some form or

           6        fashion, then, you know, the assets are going to be

           7        placed on the market and obviously some third party

           8        will acquire them at some market rate at the time.

           9        I think it would depend on what that market rate

          10        is.

          11             It's certainly possible, if you allow this to

          12        go into rate base, whatever that -- that value was

          13        could be credited to the net plant development in

          14        the regulated utility.  If it was in a separate

          15        subsidiary, then obviously it would be booked into

          16        that subsidiary's accounts, as the case may be.

          17             Obviously in the early years if the -- it

          18        would also depend on the throughput and the

          19        contracts associated with those assets.  As FPL's

          20        proposed it, there would not necessarily be any

          21        contracts or any fixed revenue streams associated

          22        with those assets, since they're just going to

          23        utilize them as part of their electric utility

          24        plant, unless at some point if there was a

          25        divestiture, there would have to be some type of
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           1        contractual arrangements placed across those assets

           2        to make them have any value to a third party.

           3             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Mr. Forrest.

           4             MR. FORREST:  Thank you.  With respect to

           5        divestiture, I think I'd follow along with

           6        Mr. Enjamio's original comments, which are, you

           7        know, there is a little likelihood but certainly

           8        not why we're proposing it today.  Given FPL's

           9        commitment to the project and what we think the

          10        benefits are in the long-term, we definitely are

          11        committed to it.

          12             However, I'm certainly not an expert in public

          13        utility law or regulatory law with respect to how

          14        that divestiture might occur, but -- but this

          15        Commission certainly would have at least some

          16        oversight with respect to review of any potential

          17        impact on our customers if we were expected to

          18        divest, you know, early on or down the road of that

          19        asset, of the Florida EnergySecure line.  We

          20        certainly would expect there to be some review

          21        there to understand what the total impact was.  It

          22        would be difficult for us to say today what, if

          23        any, impact that would look like.

          24             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Argenziano.

          25             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Well, I just wanted
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           1        to see, you know, where -- what the possibilities

           2        were down the line.  And while they don't -- I'm

           3        not saying that they're planning for divestiture, I

           4        wouldn't think they are.  I just am thinking down

           5        the line when you talk to people who, you know,

           6        quite frequently say, well, why am I paying for

           7        this now?  And even those who will still be paying

           8        in 2014, you know, you've got to look out for their

           9        benefit too.  If this occurs, what are the future

          10        Commission's possibilities or how it could be set

          11        up now to consider some of those things.

          12             And appreciate the answers.  They're

          13        thought-provoking.  Thank you.

          14             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Commissioner.

          15        Now, we want to --

          16             MR. FORREST:  Chairman Carter, if I could, I

          17        just have one follow-up to her original question.

          18             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Commissioner Skop,

          19        one second, sir.  I'll get with you in one second.

          20        Okay?

          21             Just one additional note to the first question

          22        that was asked?

          23             MR. FORREST:  Yeah.  Commissioner Argenziano

          24        had the question on benefit to our customers.  I

          25        feel like we're already seeing the benefits of the
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           1        announced Florida EnergySecure line just with

           2        respect to offers that we have seen from FGT.

           3        Certainly there are some -- in terms of offers to

           4        us, there is an index which allows them to adjust

           5        to this price of steel.  And everybody had that

           6        option that was part of this process.  But they

           7        have lowered their offers to us by almost

           8        $15 million a year, if not over $15 million a year,

           9        excluding the impacts of steel.  So those are

          10        benefits that our customers are already seeing.  If

          11        for whatever reason this project isn't -- the

          12        Florida EnergySecure line isn't selected to move

          13        forward, our customers have already seen the

          14        benefits of just that threat of competition, if

          15        nothing else.

          16             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  And that's great.

          17        And hopefully you're considering that also and the

          18        benefit.

          19             MR. LANGSTON:  May I respond to that, or --

          20             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  But of course you

          21        understand my question.  And I understand that

          22        because that is another factor that needs to be

          23        thought about.

          24             My question really did go to the benefits,

          25        including that one, but also how do you respond to
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           1        the consumer that says, how does it benefit me?

           2        I'm having a hard time coming up with an answer to

           3        the people who have to prepay that say down the

           4        line this is the benefit.  But that's why we went

           5        through those that are still paying in 2014, what

           6        would be the benefit and when would it start and,

           7        you know -- and hopefully, you know, in using the

           8        pipeline for other contracts, that the consumer

           9        sees the benefit to them also.  And that's really

          10        what I was trying to get at, where all the benefits

          11        were to be able to better answer those questions.

          12             MR. FORREST:  If I could --

          13             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Briefly.  Mr. Langston, you

          14        wanted to respond just ever so briefly so we can

          15        move on.

          16             MR. LANGSTON:  Yeah.  My only comment was our

          17        reduced proposals were primarily driven by material

          18        cost.  Our last proposal in this proceeding was in

          19        March.  This EnergySecure filing was made

          20        April 7th.  While FPL indicated they were reviewing

          21        an internal pipeline, we had not --

          22             COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

          23             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Thank you.

          24             Commissioner Skop?

          25             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes, Mr. Chair.  Thank
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           1        you.

           2             I just wanted to preface my prior question by

           3        saying, based on some of the comments that we've

           4        heard, that, you know, I do understand the

           5        long-term benefits of the proposed projects, I do

           6        understand for the most part the short-term rate

           7        impacts, also aware of the benefit of additional

           8        competition.

           9             I guess what I'm trying to get at, and I guess

          10        Late-Filed Exhibit 97 should add some additional

          11        light to this, I just want to make sure that, from

          12        the Commission's perspective, that we have full

          13        visibility and transparency on what's going to

          14        happen in the future to the extent of the potential

          15        rate impact that will occur in the 2013, 2014 time

          16        frame.

          17             And I think if I'm -- you know, when we get to

          18        Late-Filed Exhibit 97, I think what you'll see is

          19        that certainly from the pipeline as FPL's

          20        presented, there's at least a $2.50 cost on the

          21        average monthly bill to the average user, and you

          22        have to account for the upstream pipeline portion

          23        that will be probably run through the fuel cost but

          24        also the two modernization plants.

          25             So I think that recently they're saying this
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           1        is a question -- I mean, the question for this

           2        witness, we tried to get a better handle on what

           3        potential monthly impact the customers will be

           4        looking at the totality of the pipeline, the two

           5        modernization plants, just they -- just as to

           6        visibility.  Not a negative thing, but just make

           7        sure that, you know, as future commissions are

           8        asked to allow for cost recovery, that, you know,

           9        we have everything on the table and decisions fully

          10        vetted.

          11             So my question would be, knowing that there

          12        probably will be some rate impacts -- and I'll ask

          13        that question to the witness -- but I was looking

          14        at if there is excess capacity, perhaps as FPL's

          15        mentioned, you might want to preserve some of that

          16        excess capacity to avoid having to purchase nonfirm

          17        transport during peak periods.  But I'm wondering

          18        if a portion, maybe a small portion or some portion

          19        of that excess capacity from 2014 through 2021,

          20        where the full capacity would be needed for other

          21        plants, could be potentially sold as firm capacity

          22        to mitigate impacts to the ratepayer.

          23             And I've heard FPL say that they could utilize

          24        the excess capacity, but again I think that when we

          25        look at the rate impact, that certainly anything
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           1        that we could do to make sense, to make this

           2        affordable is a good thing for consumers.  So I

           3        just wanted to pose that question to the witness

           4        and have any further discussion as necessary.

           5             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Commissioner, we're

           6        going to do the same thing as we did with

           7        Commissioner Argenziano's question, allow both

           8        parties an opportunity to respond.

           9             Mr. Langston.

          10             MR. LANGSTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          11        Commissioner, I'm not sure I can address this

          12        directly.  My only comment would be at this point

          13        in time as it's proposed, my understanding is

          14        intrastate pipeline will interconnect with three of

          15        FPL's power plants, Cape Canaveral, Riviera Beach,,

          16        and Martin as such, unless there's interconnects

          17        with other companies, LDCs, industrial customers or

          18        whoever.  I'm not sure who could use the excess

          19        capacity on the system.

          20             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Mr. Forrest?

          21             MR. FORREST:  Yeah, thank you.  To

          22        Commissioner Skop's I guess earlier point with

          23        respect to I guess Exhibit 97, I believe it was,

          24        which was asking us to look at the rate impact of

          25        the modernization as well as the pipeline, we're
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           1        certainly committed to giving you that.  I believe

           2        that was the right exhibit number I referenced.

           3        The one thing I will say after that -- I'm sorry?

           4             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yeah, I believe it is.

           5        I'm going from memory, but I could be wrong but I

           6        believe it's 97.

           7             MR. FORREST:  I appreciate that.

           8             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  My question to that, just

           9        to try to quantify it again, subject to check, not

          10        holding you to a number, but would it be fair to

          11        say that in the 2013, 2014 time frame, that the

          12        average customer would see a near-term rate

          13        increase of approximately 4 to 6 dollars when all

          14        of those -- when all of those capital projects are

          15        evolved into the rate base?

          16             MR. FORREST:  Yeah, I do not have that

          17        information available.  I believe we're committed

          18        to getting it to you as soon as we can.

          19             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

          20             MR. FORREST:  But what I will say with respect

          21        to that, certainly if we continue to focus on year

          22        one impacts, and certainly there will be a year one

          23        impact and we don't dispute that, we'll never

          24        attract additional, you know, gas transportation

          25        into the state.  It does take a commitment of
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           1        capital dollars in order to make that occur.

           2             His question regarding sales, and I don't

           3        disagree with Mr. Langston at all, that, you know,

           4        selling capacity off the Florida EnergySecure line

           5        will be a challenge for a couple of different

           6        reasons.  We're certainly committed to doing so and

           7        we're certainly committed to doing so with

           8        oversight from this Commission if such an

           9        opportunity does arise.

          10             The fact that it has limited connectivity,

          11        it's only connected to the Canaveral, Riviera, and

          12        Martin facilities on FPL's system, certainly will

          13        make that a challenge.  Others would have to pay

          14        interconnection costs, potentially build a lateral

          15        over to their facilities if that's the case.

          16             Again, the sole purpose of the Florida

          17        EnergySecure line is to serve FPL's electric

          18        customers with a cost-effective -- what we believe

          19        is cost-effective, reliable, and diverse set of

          20        transportation services.  And as such, you know,

          21        we're going to hold that capacity available once

          22        our next generation set is needed.

          23             So if we hold a generator in 2021 or if for

          24        whatever reason nuclear is delayed and we push that

          25        capacity up to 2018, we would expect that capacity
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           1        of the Florida EnergySecure line be available and

           2        ready to sell.  For that reason, when somebody else

           3        has to commit dollars for interconnection fee and

           4        there's a very short period of time, I think it's

           5        going to be a challenge certainly to make capacity

           6        sales off the line.

           7             But again, if the opportunity does arise, we

           8        are certainly committed to doing that.  I think the

           9        much more likely scenario would be through capacity

          10        releases on FGT and Gulfstream systems.  And most

          11        likely FGT, they do by far have the greatest

          12        connectivity within the state, certainly serve the

          13        greatest number of customers.  There's no disputing

          14        that.

          15             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Well, I appreciate you

          16        clarifying that point.  I'm not a gas expert so I

          17        was trying to better ascertain, but if I

          18        understood, and I think you just mentioned it, that

          19        the potential benefit would be the release of small

          20        transport process cells on the existing pipeline

          21        that FPL already has under contract as opposed to

          22        doing it from the EnergySecure pipeline.

          23             MR. FORREST:  That is correct.  And I believe

          24        in Mr. Sexton's, I'm not sure if it's his rebuttal,

          25        he had estimated somewhere in the $175 million
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           1        range of additional value that would be brought in

           2        through those capacity releases.  And that's really

           3        set at the, what we'll call the market rate.  It's

           4        basically the average price that we paid last year,

           5        that FPL paid last year for interruptible

           6        transportation.  I think Mr. Enjamio earlier

           7        mentioned that between April, I believe it was, and

           8        just a few days ago we spent roughly, you know,

           9        $3 million in interruptible transportation fees on

          10        FGT and potentially Gulfstream.  Those costs would

          11        not be incurred if capacity is available off of the

          12        EnergySecure line for us to utilize.

          13             So certainly there are benefits directly from

          14        that, having it available and a reduction of costs.

          15             COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And I do appreciate

          16        that again.  I think the -- that point is well

          17        taken and it is at least equally important from my

          18        perspective.  Again, we have two modernization

          19        plans coming on line that represent conservatively

          20        a $2.5 million investment, and we -- I guess it's

          21        very important to make sure that we're going to

          22        have gas supply for those two projects that have

          23        already been approved by the Commission.

          24             So thank you for the clarification.  Like I

          25        said, I'm just trying to clearly find out about the
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           1        issue and get a better appreciation as to the

           2        near-term impact as opposed to the long-term

           3        benefits.  Thank you.

           4             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Commissioners.

           5        And obviously the parties will be briefing these

           6        issues to ensure that as we go through our

           7        evaluation, we'll have -- I think they can

           8        understand the questions that have come from staff,

           9        from the parties, as well as what's come from the

          10        bench, and they'll be briefing those issues.

          11             Let me do this, Commissioners, if there's no

          12        further questions, let me take care of some

          13        procedural matters.  Anything further,

          14        Commissioners?

          15             Okay.  Hearing none, let's do this.  Staff,

          16        you are recognized.  I think we had an issue

          17        pending with some exhibits?

          18             MS. BROWN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, we actually

          19        have two issues pending with exhibits.

          20             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.

          21             MS. BROWN:  First we are passing out --

          22             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  This is the FERC order?

          23             MS. BROWN:  This is the FERC order we are

          24        passing out.  The staff and the parties have agreed

          25        to take official recognition of this, to request
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           1        that the Commission take official recognition.

           2             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  This is -- this will be --

           3        right now it's marked for identification as Exhibit

           4        101, Commissioners, and it's the FERC order,

           5        condition approving the settlement.

           6             And you said there's agreement from the

           7        parties, Mr. Perko?  Mr. Butler?

           8             MR. BUTLER:  Yes.

           9             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?

          10             MR. SELF:  No objection.

          11             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Then we're showing

          12        that -- without objection show it done.

          13             (Exhibit No. 101 admitted into the record.)

          14             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Staff, you're recognized.

          15             MS. BROWN:  The second matter that we have to

          16        deal with is a list of confidential interrogatory

          17        responses that FPL has passed around, I think, to

          18        everyone.  It's titled Confidential Exhibit List,

          19        and it includes several of FPL's discovery

          20        responses that are entered into the record in

          21        staff's composite exhibit list but in the -- in the

          22        redacted version, this is the confidential list.

          23        We'd like to have this entered into the record as

          24        Composite Confidential Discovery Exhibit List.

          25             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  The parties are aware
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           1        that this is the actual list, not necessarily the

           2        confidential documents themselves but it's the

           3        list?

           4             Mr. Self?

           5             MR. SELF:  What I'm trying to get in is the

           6        actual documents themselves.  I thought the idea

           7        was -- go ahead, Ms. Brown.

           8             MS. BROWN:  The documents will be in the

           9        record, but we're just putting the exhibit list --

          10             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Exhibit list.  This is the

          11        exhibit list.

          12             MS. BROWN:  -- in.  And then a copy of the

          13        confidential documents will go to the clerk but

          14        we're keeping the rest under confidential cover.

          15             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler?

          16             MR. BUTLER:  I have to say I'm a little bit

          17        confused.  What would be the exhibit number for the

          18        confidential documents themselves as opposed to the

          19        list?

          20             MS. BROWN:  Well, the -- you know, I don't

          21        know the answer to that.  I guess the exhibit

          22        numbers would be Confidential Exhibits 1 through

          23        13.

          24             Mr. Self, you're going to have to help me out.

          25        This is your list.
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           1             MR. SELF:  Can I just suggest that we make the

           2        documents that are enumerated on this list and this

           3        document that lists them Exhibit 102?

           4             MS. BROWN:  Okay.  That's fine.

           5             MR. BUTLER:  That makes sense, yes.

           6             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  And then Exhibit 102,

           7        what's the name for it?

           8             MS. BROWN:  Composite Confidential Discovery

           9        Response exhibits.  Say that three times fast.

          10             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Composite --

          11             MS. BROWN:  Confidential Discovery Responses.

          12             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Composite Confidential

          13        Discovery Responses.  Okay.  Are there any

          14        objections?  Mr. Butler?

          15             MR. BUTLER:  No objection.

          16             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?  Obviously you

          17        wouldn't be objecting to your own exhibit, would

          18        you?

          19             MR. SELF:  I hope not, but anything is

          20        possible.

          21             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  It is the end of the day.

          22        Show it done without objection.

          23             (Exhibit No. 102 admitted into the record.)

          24             MR. SELF:  Thank you, Commissioners.

          25             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Ms. -- is that -- does that

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        912

           1        conclude the evidentiary portion?  Any other

           2        evidence, any other exhibits, any other witnesses

           3        or anything?  Because we're getting ready -- I'm

           4        getting ready to ask you about post-hearing

           5        procedures.  But before I do that, any further --

           6             MS. BROWN:  Nothing further that I'm aware of.

           7             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Anything further from

           8        Mr. Butler?

           9             MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman, I do not show

          10        exhibit -- Late-Filed Exhibit 99, which actually

          11        has been distributed, this was the comparison of

          12        economic analysis results, as being admitted.

          13             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  That's in.  That's in.

          14        That's the request of the information from

          15        Commissioner Skop.

          16             MR. BUTLER:  That's right, yes.

          17             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, it's in.  No. 99.

          18             MR. SELF:  We have no objection to 99.

          19             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Thank you.

          20        Okay.

          21             Mr. Butler, anything further procedurally

          22        before we go to the post-hearing procedures?

          23             MR. BUTLER:  No.

          24             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self, anything -- do you

          25        want to take a minute or is there anything further?
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           1             MR. SELF:  Nothing further, sir.

           2             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Commissioners,

           3        anything further before we go to post-hearing

           4        procedures?

           5             Ms. Brown, post-hearing procedures.

           6             MS. BROWN:  Yes.  For the parties'

           7        information, briefs are due on August 10th, staff

           8        recommendations are due on September 2nd for the

           9        Commission's agenda on September 15th.

          10             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Everyone clear?

          11             MR. SELF:  Yes, sir.

          12             MR. BUTLER:  Yes, sir.

          13             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Staff, are there any

          14        further -- let me ask the parties first before I

          15        come to you.

          16             Mr. Butler, any further concluding matters

          17        from FPL?

          18             MR. BUTLER:  There are none.

          19             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self, any further

          20        concluding matters from FGT?

          21             MR. SELF:  Nothing further from us.

          22             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Anything further from the

          23        bench?

          24             Ms. Brown, anything further from staff?

          25             MS. BROWN:  No, sir.
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           1             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Ms. Helton, did we cover

           2        everything?

           3             MR. HELFAND:  I believe we did, sir.

           4             CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Commissioners, with

           5        that, we are adjourned.

           6             (Hearing concluded.)

           7                         * * * * * *
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